Town of Minnesott Beach
Board of Commissioners’ Meeting
March 10, 2020
Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Minnesott Beach, was held
Tuesday March 10, 2020 at 7:00 P.M at the Minnesott Beach Town Hall.

Board members present: Mayor Fowler, Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner
Cliff Braly, Commissioner Kenny Campen and Commissioner David Gaskins.

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Donna Scott, Brian Milner, Julie
Steinmetz, Thalbert James, Barbara James and Richard Hughes.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment of silence and led
everyonc in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to, February 11, 2020 minutes.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the March 10, 2020 agenda. Mayor
Fowler asked to add commercial trucks parked overnight on town streets and request for a
library donation, office desks & chairs under Miscellaneous. Commissioner Braly moved to
accept the amended agenda. All ayes.

Public Comments: None

Public Hearing: Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to go into a public hearing.
Commissioner Garfinkel moved to go into a Public Hearing. All ayes.

Commissioner Garfinkel reported the Planning Board recommended the Commissioners
approve this amendment. He read the ordinance with the changes into the record:

§ 151.164 R-M MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT

(E) Dimensional requirements; multiple buildings. When there are two or more principal
buildings on a common lot, which has single “or multiple” ownership, they shall
comply with the following requirements: (none of the requirements change).

Commissioner Gaskins asked the reason for changing it. Commissioner Garfinkel
explained the Planning Board had been asked to make the change by Becca Lang from
Arlington Place. Commissioner Gaskins said the Planning Board’s recommendation is
to insert “or multiple” into the ordinance.

Mayor Fowler asked for any questions or comments from those atiending the meeting.
There were none.

3/10/2020 BOC meeting 1



Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing and go back into regular
session. Commissioner Braly moved to leave the Public Hearing and go back into
regular session. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to approve the amended ordinance. Commissioner Braly
so moved. All ayes.

Agenda Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Meeting with Carlos Melo: Mayor Fowler reported that on February 2th he,
Commissioner Garfinkel, Town Manager Carolyn Braly and Clerk Donna Scott met with Mr.
Melo, Tom (the Marina mgr.) and Kart the golf course mgr. Mr. Melo wanted to share his
plans for his property which includes the marina and the golf course. Mayor Fowler reported
they have very ambitious plans. He wants a “destination” property. His plans are to include
a high-end RV park. The Mayor said he told him most of the property is zoned R-15 except
for the marina and a small area of R-M zoned property on Neuse River Road at the entrance
to the marina property. Mayor Fowler told him before he could do any development, he
would be required to present to the Town’s Planning Board a Master Plan for approval.
Mayor Fowler said the ball is in his court to come back to the town with his plans.

Town Manager’s report. Mrs. Braly reported there was one approved zoning permit in
Arlington Place to add a concrete pad. We’ve still not hired a maintenance man. Larry
Hackney has said he can work part-time. Town Manager asked for and received permission
to dispose of some old office equipment.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel reported the Planning Board met
March 3rd. He said Greg Murphy resigned from the Planning Board effective
immediately because of personal issues. Commissioner Garfinkel said he thanked him
for his services to the Town. Commissioner Garfinkel reported Janet Armstrong has
volunteered to join the Planning Board.

Arlington Place is working on a Phase 3 Master Plan. They will accommodate waste
water remediation in this final plan. Commissioner Garfinkel said there is a very small
area demarcated for waste-water treatment. It would not accommodate Phase I, 11 & I
if the density increases. Commissioner Garfinkel said they have reduced the popular
density considerably. He said his understanding was the waste water treatment was not
a function of density but was part of this plan development. They would have to make
this accommodatable and that will have to be addressed. Commissioner Garfinkel said
Arlington Place has demarcated an area for the “cottages” that they are bidding out.
There will be a round-about in the middle of all of this. Commissioner Garfinkel said
they need to submit a master plan before they can do anything. Commissioner
Garfinkel passed out copies of the current master plan sketches.

Commissioner Garfinkel said the Planning Board wants to know if the commissioners
want an amendment to Section 151.164 (C) Special Uses (2) Mobile Homes. He said
that is not a use we want to encourage. Mayor Fowler said the board can act on our
own without a formal recommendation from the planning board. He asked how the
Board felt about this issue. After further discussion, Commissioner Gaskins moved to
amend Section 151.164 (C) Special Uses by deleting number (2) Mobile Homes under
Special Uses. This will NOT change for existing properties zoned RM. All ayes.

2/11/2020 BOC meeting 2



Commissioner Braly moved to advertise a Public Hearing to amend Section 151.164
(C) Special Uses (2) Mobile Homes. All ayes.

Finance Report: Commissioner Gaskins reported all income and expenditures were
within the budgeted ranges. The Town’s current assets as of February 29, 2020 are:
First Citizen's Bank Checking $15,349.10; First Citizen's MM $353,206.51; CressCom
Bank’s Savings $219,128.50; North Carolina Management Trust is $211,118.60; Petty
Cash $50.00. Total assets for the Town are $1,057,474.77.

Commissioner Garfinkel asked if we could get the Tim Buck to come to our next meeting
and explain what criteria was used and how that was evaluated. He said most property tax
values were raised. Where is the justification. Mayor Fowler said when we do our budget,
we can decide what our tax rate will be. Mayor Fowler said he would invite Mr. Buck to the
next meeting.

Town projects: Commissioner Braly said we are nearing the end of the office
renovation. There is a short punch list for the interior of the office. He also said we
need to update the shutters and some treatment of entrance. Commissioner Campen
said he would look into getting shutters.

Commissioner Braly said 811 Loco has finally marked the area on Country Club Drive
and Hardison. Ken Heath should begin work in the next week or two.

Commissioner Braly said DOT and the Pamlico Water Dept are the hold up with
repairing the culvert at Country Club Drive and Bennet Road. DOT is talking about
moving their culvert and drain to the west side of Country Club Drive West, but no
plans are in place. Commissioner Gaskins said this has been going on for quite a while.
Commissioner Braly said he had chatted with Tim Buck about the urgency of the
problem and how to get the Water Dept moving. It is an accident waiting to happen.
DOT are talking about putting in a new culvert when they can get approval.

Commissioner Braly reported George & Gina Pawlikowski have complained about a
dead pine tree on the Town’s property in front of their house. Mayor Fowler
recommended we go ahead and remove it before hurricane season. Commissioner
Braly said he would call and have the tree removed.

Town Clean-up: Commissioner Braly moved to have the Town’s clean-up Thursday
April 30 and Friday May 1. All ayes.

Miscellaneous: Mayor Fowler said he had received complaints from a resident about
commercial trucks parked overnight and over weekends on town streets. He reported

letters had been written to the homeowners and the trucks were now gone.

Mayor Fowler said the Town has received a request for a library donation of $1 per
town resident. He gave the request to Commissioner Gaskins for review.

2/11/2020 BOC meeting 3



Commissioner Gaskins reported he’d talked with folks at the Charter School about their
unused office furniture. He said he was told the furniture was in bad shape. Mayor
Fowler asked the Town Manager to get prices for new office desks & chairs.

There being no further business, Commissioner Braly moved to adjourn the regular meeting
at pm. All Ayes,

ij%

Donna Scott, Town Clerk

3/10/2020 BOC meeting



